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ANN DONNELLY, District Judge.

The plaintiffs brought this putative class and collective action on August 10,2012 against

their employers, Konstantin Dergunov, Lokeko Inc. ("Lokeko"), and Double "K" USA, Corp.

("Double K"), for alleged violations of the Fair Labor Standards Act ("FLSA") and New York

Labor Law ("NYLL" or "Labor Law"). Specifically, the plaintiffs complain that the defendants

violated the FLSA and the Labor Law by failing to pay an hourly rate of pay (29 U.S.C. §

206(a); 12 N.Y.C.C.R.R. § 142-2.1), and an overtime premium (29 U.S.C. § 207(a)(1); 12

N.Y.C.C.R.R. § 142-2.2) for work performed in excess of forty hours per work week.

Additionally, the plaintiffs allege that the defendants made unlawfiil deductions fr om their pay in

violation of the Labor Law (12 N.Y.C.C.R.R. § 195), and failed to maintain records as required

by the FLSA.

Currently pending are responses to the June 15,2016 order to show cause. Because I

conclude that the motor carrier exemption bars the FLSA and New York Labor Law overtime

claims, they are dismissed with prejudice. Additionally, because the plaintiffs concede that there
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s/Ann M. Donnelly


